Interpretive notes

Douglas Grant 

John Chamberlain's 1828 map of the original road to Prospect, as shown on a scanned image of Fiche XX in the Halifax West Portfolio, Nova Scotia Dept of Natural Resources, is remarkably accurate in scale and configuration when matched to the present road network, considering its date and the methods used to produce it. The history of the map has not yet been determined and the history of Prospect Road is virtually unknown. All that is known at present is that the Prospect Road was contructed in 1812 by French prisoners from the Melville Island military jail according to the book, "Diary of a Frenchman - Francois Lambert Bourneuf's Adventures from France to Acadia 1787-1871".

For the present, it is interesting to study the map and compare it with the modern road network to reveal what changes have occurred in the interim.  The image shows that, when the microfilm copy was made, the original was missing a 2-cm segment down the middle of the map owing to damage from folding. Also, the microfilm process was less than perfect. However, these flaws do not significantly affect the legibility of the map or the accuracy of the comparison with present roads. To make the content of Chamberlain's map more widely available and to enable the comparison with present roads, an accurate reproduction drawing with colour added was made by first scanning the microfilm copy, then tracing it in a graphics program, adding colour where appropriate. Care was taken to ensure that the linework and position of all elements matched the original as closely as possible. Most of the text could be deciphered; illegible parts are represented by asterisks.  Text that was not clearly legible, but for which a reasonably reliable guess could be made, is enclosed in square brackets. Eventually, the missing text will be deciphered.  

A comparison map of Chamberlain's survey and the modern roads by the following process. First, since he drew his map with compass north oriented toward the lower left corner, rather than toward the top of the map as is the current practise, the drawing was rotated accordingly. Then it was scaled so that the two ends of the road at the head of Prospect Bay and [Fairview Cove] Bedford Basin matched their modern counterparts. At one point where the road crosses the highest hill (400 feet; 120 m), the map shows two sight lines to distant points. After rotation and scaling, the sight line "...to the flagstaff on Citadel Hill" coincided perfectly with its present direction, thus lending support to the accuracy of the process. The other  sightline "... to the Eastern Head opposite the Devil Island" points to McNabs Island and Lawlor's Island, rather than to the island now called "Devil's Island". This point is to be resolved later with reference to old maps. 

The course of Prospect Road, as shown on Chamberlain's map, generally coincides with modern and disused roads in its northern and southern portions but there are considerable differences  in the middle part which remain to be resolved with reference to airphotos and old maps. Despite these uncertainties, some general findings can be offered on the basis of simple map comparison. With reference to letters on the superimposed maps, the details are as follows. Chamberlain shows the Prospect Road originating on the shore of "Bedford Bason" (now Basin). Why it started there is not yet known, and deserves research. From there, the northern segment (A) follows fairly closely the present Dutch Village Road (referred to as "duch" in the map title) to the head of "North West Arm" (now Northwest Arm) (B).  In this segment there are five cross roads, which are readily matched to Kempt Road, Geizers Hill road, Mumford Road, an unnamed quarry road, and Quinpool Road.

For some unknown reason Chamberlain showed the head of Northwest Arm quite differently than it is today. Moreover, its position does not match well either, although the fit could perhaps be improved if the scale of segment B-D was changed to take account of its slope. From the head of Northwest Arm the old road follows a course (C) that lies at least 500 m west of the present Herring Cove Road (Route 349). The discrepancy is so great that it is not likely a surveying error, but an indication that the road did indeed follow a track in the hinterland, perhaps by way of an easier grade behind Cowie Hill (C) where old quarries were located. Some research is needed on this point.

After following Herring Cove Road to the the top of the slope, the Old Prospect Road diverted westward onto another road (D), the course of which does seem not match any of the present roads. However, it has the same general shape as the present northern portion of Old Sambro Road (present Route 306). It followed this for only about one kilometre, then, after crossing two unnamed streams labelled "McIntoshes River" (now McIntosh Run), it evidently again diverted west for 5.5 km onto the Old St. Margarets Bay Road (E) which is tentatively thought to have originated as a pony express route that ends near Glen Margaret. (Most of this old post road is now only a trail through the wilderness.) The two sightlines were taken about halfway along this segment where the road crested the highest land in the area (120 m). The first 4 km of this part of the old post road is now a walking trail through provincial park lands which joins the present Prospect Road across from the old Goodwood school house near the junction with Spruce Hill Lake Road.

The latter 1.5 km of this part of the old post road (F) meanders parallel to and just to the south of present Prospect Road (Route 333) in the Goodwood area. At that point it diverted southward off the old post road (which continues as Big Indian Lake Road and then as a trail to near Glen Margaret) as a totally new road that appears to have run slightly to the west of the present Prospect Road (G). Examination of airphotos and early topographic map is required to determine whether in fact the old Prospect Road was separate from the present Prospect highway which has been straightened over the years. In any case, it maintained this course until it reached the top of the hill above "Prospect Lake" (now Whites Lake) where it apparently crossed the present highway (H) and veered eastward to follow a lesser gradient rather than down the present steep incline.

The road is not shown farther than the "Head of Prospect Bay", but old maps suggest that the final segment to Prospect village also took a somewhat different course than it does today. The map of the Crown Grants for Prospect peninsula [LINK], as well as a 1907 map by E.R. Faribault of the Geological Survey of Canada shows that the road to Prospect did indeed take the high ground (J), presumably because the terrain there is smoother and less rocky than along the shore Prospect Bay where the present road is located.

(Interpretation by Douglas Grant, March 2001, with thanks to Nat Smith for the copy and for the historical reference, and to George Newbury for road information.)

